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Key competition facts – broadly agreed 
v  There is significant concentration and high barriers to entry 

Ø  ‘Big 4’ audit firms account for >95% of FTSE 350 firms’ audits and 
>99% of fees. 

Ø  ‘Mid-tier’ firms find it hard to compete for FTSE 350 audit work, 
other than in some specific sectors (eg real estate). 

v  Even within Big 4 there is very little switching 
Ø  Average annual switching of 2.4% and around of half of this due to 

mergers/move into FTSE 350.  

Ø  So only around 1% due to desire to get better value. 

Ø  Also very little tendering. 



Further key facts – broadly agreed 
v  Price is a secondary consideration in choice of auditor. Quality is 

more important. 
Ø  Asymmetric information means that it can be hard to assess the true 

quality of different offerings.  

Ø  Much current switching occurs in response to poor current quality. 

v  There are reasonably high costs of search/tendering (mainly time) 

v  There are also high costs of switching, in particular in terms of: 
Ø  Cost (mainly time) of educating a new auditor: This cost is higher for 

larger and more complex companies. 

Ø  Loss of benefits from continuity in client-auditor relationship: Can 
reduce efficiency of audit process, increase risks of poor technical 
audit quality, reduce potential for additional commercial insights, goes 
against desire to portray stability and continuity.  



So far, so apparently bad…but… 
v  Audit firms are keen to keep existing clients, due to ongoing profitability of 

relationship (which in turn reflect sunk upfront costs of investing in 
relationship and benefits of continuity).  

v  When customers do go out to tender, the Big 4 firms typically bid 
vigorously to try and win the business.  

v  Thus, customers in a good position to negotiate better deals without going 
out to tender.  

Ø  Indeed, CC found evidence of such renegotiation to get lower fees or 
changes in audit scope. Plus average prices and hours have fallen in 
recent years (evidence apparently ignored!) 

v  In this context, and given sophisticated big buyers, might low switching 
rates simply indicate happy customers? 



Last year, I promised equations! 
v  Case raises an interesting research question (I think!): 

Ø  If buyers can improve their deal by threatening to go to tender… 

Ø  …is this any worse than the competitive market outcome? 

v  Very simple model:  

Ø  One customer only, who must buy a unit of audit. This customer 
is initially allocated to Firm 1. 

Ø  Firm 1 chooses how good a deal value to offer (value V1)   

Ø  There are n other possible suppliers, and the value of the deal 
offered by each is exogenous, and randomly drawn from a 
uniform distribution on [0,1].  

Ø  The customer can only observe the deals offered by others if it 
tenders, at cost x. If the customer then switches, this costs y. 



3 Stage game 
v  Move order: 

Ø  Stage 1: Firm 1 decides what value V1 to offer. For exogenous 
reasons, it wishes to retain the consumer ‘at any cost’. 

Ø  Stage 2: Customer decides whether to go out to tender, at tender 
cost x. If it tenders, it learns the values of the other deals on the 
market Vj. (If not, it simply sticks with Firm 1). 

Ø  Stage 3: If it has tendered, the customer decides whether to switch to 
a new provider, at switching cost y. 



Stage 3 – To switch or not to switch? 
v  Stage 3 decision: 

Ø  Customer will switch only if there exists a supplier j, such that: 

   Vj  > (V1 + y) 

Ø  The likelihood that of this occurring is given by: 

   L = (1 – (V1 + y)n) 



Stage 2 – To tender or not to tender? 
v  Stage 2 decision (now assume n = 1 for simplicity): 

Ø  Customer will go to tender if the expected gain from doing so 
exceeds the tender cost x.  

Ø  Expected gain conditional on later switching = (1 - (V1 + y))/2 

Ø  So overall expected gain = L × (1 - (V1 + y))/2  

        = (1 - (V1 + y))2/2 

v  Or more formally: 

Ø  Overall expected gain  = ∫𝑉↓1 +𝑦↑1▒  [𝑉↓𝑗  − ( 𝑉↓1 
+ y)] 𝑑𝑉↓𝑗  

    = (1 - (V1 + y))2/2 



Stage 1 – How to keep a customer?  
v  Stage 1 decision: 

Ø  Firm 1 will offer as good a deal as it takes to keep its customer, by 
preventing it from going to tender. 

Ø  In order to do so, Firm 1 has to set V1 such that the customer’s 
overall expected gain from going out to tender is no higher than the 
tender cost x.  

Ø  That is, it will maximise V1 subject to the following constraint: 

   x ≥ (1 - (V1 + y))2/2 

Ø  Thus, it will set V1 at: 

𝑉↓1 =1−𝑦−√2𝑥  



v  One of the CC’s remedies was a mandatory tendering remedy. This 
requires FTSE 350 companies to carry out a formal tender for their audit 
firm no less frequently than every 10 years.  

v  How does this fit into the model? It effectively removes Stage 2, because 
the customer is forced to tender. 

v  This changes Stage 1 too. To be certain of retaining the customer within a 
formal tender, the supplier has to set V1 such that it is no lower than the 
maximum possible Vj (= 1) minus switching cost y. That is: 

𝑉↓1 =1−𝑦 

v  Given that the customer also pays the tender cost x, this means that, under 
compulsory tendering, the customer overall receives: 

𝑈↓1 =1−𝑦−𝑥 

The mandatory tendering remedy 



v  Under compulsory tendering, the value received by customers is: 

𝑉↓1 =1−𝑦−𝑥 

v  Under the original model, without compulsory tendering, the value received 
by customers is:

𝑉↓1 =1−𝑦−√2𝑥  
v  Since √2𝑥 > 𝑥, for all relevant x, customers are better off with the 

compulsory tendering remedy! That is, real competition is better than 
‘negotiation in the face of a threat to tender’. 

v  Clearly this model is highly simplified and stylised. But does it contain a 
core truth? Probably. 

Comparison: Is the remedy good? 



v  There is, though, a further interesting factor here (not in model). 

Ø  In a tender, it seems likely that an incumbent audit firm may have a 
competitive advantage (‘toe-hold’) over its competitors. 

Ø  In such situations, the Bulow, Huang and Klemperer (1999) problem 
can arise, viz. no one bids because it is obvious who will win. This in 
turn means that incumbent firms can win despite offering poor deals. 
Competition doesn’t work! 

Ø  In fact, there is currently strong bidding. But is this because, today, if 
a customer switches this may signal dissatisfaction with its current 
supplier, and thus no advantage? 

Ø  Will this change with mandatory tendering? And if so, is there a risk 
that the Bulow, Huang and Klemperer problem emerges? 

Addendum: Unintended consequences? 
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